### SAN LEANDRO UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT SAN LEANDRO, CALIFORNIA www.sanleandro.k12.ca.us

## **REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION - MINUTES**

# April 19, 2005

The Board of Education of the San Leandro Unified School District met in regular session on April 19, 2005, in the San Leandro City Council Chambers, 835 East 14th Street, San Leandro, California.

The meeting was called to order at 6:03 p.m. by President Pauline Cutter.

#### **BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT**

Mr. Stephen Cassidy Mrs. Lisa Hague Mr. Louis Heystek Ms. Linda Perry Mr. Ray Davis, Clerk Mr. T.W. "Rick" Richards, Vice President Mrs. Pauline Cutter, President

#### DISTRICT STAFF PRESENT

Christine Lim, Superintendent Leon Glaster, Assistant Superintendent Michael Martinez, Assistant Superintendent Linda Pollard, Administrative Assistant

#### PUBLIC COMMENTS REGARDING CLOSED SESSION AGENDA

There were no public comments concerning items on the closed session agenda.

#### **CLOSED SESSION**

At 6:05 p.m., the Board went into closed session for Student Expulsions; Public Employee Performance Evaluation, Title: Superintendent; Conference with Labor Negotiator; Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation – Significant Exposure to Litigation – 1 case; Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation – 2 cases pursuant to Education Code Sections 35146 and 48918(c); and Government Code Sections 54957, 54957.6, 54956.9(b), and 54956.9. The closed session was adjourned at 7:20 p.m.

The Board returned to open session at 7:30 p.m. with the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. President Cutter said the Board had been in closed session and no action was taken.

# APPROVAL OF AGENDA

On a motion made by Ms. Perry and seconded by Mr. Richards, the Board approved the agenda for the regular meeting of April 19, 2005 by a 7-0 vote.

**REPORTS** Student Representatives' Reports – San Leandro High School student representative, Angela DeClaro, updated the Board on school activities including STAR testing, April 25-29, with sample questions and prizes being announced over the PA system; AP testing begins June 2; staff appreciation week with a luncheon on April 22; musical "Bat Boy" performances through April 23; Link Crew's spring event April 20 and will be serving ice cream sundaes to all 9<sup>th</sup> graders; DECA international competition is April 27-30 in Anaheim; boys and girls track; girls softball and boys baseball.

# PRESENTATIONS

- \* President Cutter and Trustee Richards recognized and presented Certificates of Appreciations to ROP Students of the Month for April 2005:
  - Alicia J. Ach Business Ownership Program (unable to attend)
  - Amy Fong Marketing Program
- \* Janet Finsilver, Region IV Avid Coordinator, presented a Certificate of Distinction to San Leandro High School as a National Demonstration School for Advancement Via Individual Determination (AVID). San Leandro High School was the only school in the Bay Area to reach this status.

San Leandro High School staff and students present were Principal Amy Furtado; Karl Debro, AVID teacher and coordinator; Liz Lismer and Jason Bono, site team members; and AVID students and tutors, Robert Marujo and Daniel Odegbami.

Liz Rusk, Regional Director for AVID, explained that AVID is a college prep program for students "in the middle", focusing on middle and high school students around the nation, Canada, and the Department of Defense Schools with a 2.0-3.5 GPA, mid to high tests scores, and a strong desire and a willingness to make a commitment to all the hard work it takes to complete the A-G requirements in preparation for a four-year college. Ms. Finsilver explained that to become a demonstration site, a school submits an application to the regional office, the AVID director and coordinators review the application and visit the school, looking for a model school that would help visitors replicate. The AVID team at San Leandro High School has created such a program.

Karl Debro explained the program at San Leandro High School which began six years ago with one class with 32 students. They now have six classes with 170 students, hoping to add two more sections next year with approximately 210 students, noting that all this year's twenty-five seniors in the AVID program at San Leandro High School have been accepted to four-year colleges. In respect to the achievement gap, Mr. Debro shared data showing the high number of Latino and Black students in CP classes compared to other groups; Honors AP enrollment compared to AVID students, and those not in the program; a table of the recently released grades for this semester of AVID students at the high school noting that the key to the success of these students is the high expectation and support.

Robert Marjuo, former student of AVID and now a tutor, praised AVID for their incredibly supportive program for students who feel that a four-year college or success in high school may not be an option, and encourages students to be self-reliant.

Principal Amy Furtado added that San Leandro High School received this award because of the passion of the AVID teachers and Karl's never-ending work to secure a future for AVID by advocating for funding. Ms. Furtado thanked Superintendent Lim, Assistant Superintendent Leon Glaster, and Curriculum Director, Debbie Wong for creating a plan to secure funding for AVID at the high school.

\* Staff from the Eden Area ROP presented the Joint Powers Agreement (JPA) operating procedures that have allowed school districts the authority to provide quality career technical education to the students of their respective districts. Director Cyril Bonnano reviewed the changes and the justifications in the agreement language that was originally developed in 1991, adding that this agreement will only enhance the partnership, and that this was a four-year agreement ending in June 2009.

Mr. Heystek asked about the change of status of the Coordinating Council. Mr. Bonnano explained that ROP representatives, as a requirement, shall meet with the Superintendent for input prior to the evaluation, which may or may not be in writing, depending on the district.

Mr. Richards added that the entire ROP council had also reviewed the document at their last meeting.

Mr. Bonnano said that this has been a great relationship and every two years the document would be reviewed by the Superintendents so that it continues to reflect what we do in our daily business operations.

Mr. Cassidy encouraged Mr. Bonnano to look at ways to increase the number of San Leandro High School students participating in the program either at the ROP facilities or by expanding the ROP facilities at the high school.

Principal Amy Furtudo said that the enrollment of San Leandro High students continues to increase each year. She felt that the busing was fairly convenient for students and many of the ROP students at the Center took a second year resulting in a healthy future for the program. Mr. Bonnano said that he would get the tentative enrollment figures for next fall to the Superintendent.

\* Laura Leventer, Coordinator for Assessment & Instructional Support, and Debbie Wong, Director of Curriculum, provided an overview on the District's Adequate Yearly Progress (AYP) and our plan for achievement towards No Child Left Behind (NCLB) status.

Highlights of the presentation included explanations, changes, and new legislation in the state Academic Performance Standards (API); federal Adequate Yearly Progress (AYP); and Program Improvement (PI) status for the District.

Ms. Leventer explained how the statewide and similar school rankings were determined. Similar factors included mobility, ethnicity, socioeconomic statues (parent education), and percentage of fully credentialed teachers. Ms. Leventer said that mistakes in understanding what mobility means and parents not indicating their education level may have affected our similar schools ranking.

Debbie Wong, Director of Curriculum, explained the Program Improvement (PI) status for districts and schools (noting that our District is not a PI district and we don't have any PI schools); corrective action for districts; how schools exit PI, and what our District and schools are doing to prevent PI, including adopting standards-based instructional materials for all students; providing multiple opportunities for student assessment; analyzing students achievement data (district and state assessments) to improve instructional and determine interventions; provide high quality professional development for principals and teachers; and align the District and school plans.

Ms. Wong said that in May, a full professional development plan would be presented. In the area of student with disabilities, Ms. Wong indicated that efforts are being made to restructure services to provided more support to special education students in core curriculum in general ed classes, making sure that they have the right materials for the students, and that the Special Ed data system, SELPA, and Aeries are coordinated to avoid mistakes in tagging. For additional clarification, Ms. Wong directed the Board to two charts included in the packet: Local Educational Agency (LEA) Program Improvement (PI) Requirements as of February 2005, and NCLB Program Improvement (PI) School Requirements.

Mrs. Hague asked how the information sections on the test materials are being marked and how non-responses in the area of parent information are counted.

Ms. Leventer said that the information is pre-identified from the information that is in the Aeries system. At enrollment time, the information provided by the parents is entered into the system. For students entering after the information is provided to the testing company, students write their name on the test and a person at the site who is responsible to provide that information completes the form; the students do not bubble in information; non-responses are not counted.

Mrs. Hague pointed out that making just a few percentage point growth was huge and hoped for some legislature changes before it became an issue. She would also like a discussion regarding how the highly qualified staff scenario fits into the NCLB.

Board members had concerns regarding mobility, accurate information being inputted in the system, recorded on the form, its effect on similar school rankings; and training for the office staff.

Ms. Perry liked the "prize concept" at the high school and how important it is to educate the parents on the importance of this test.

Ms. Leventer said that a special effort was made to look at "testing culture" such as a consolidated calendar to release to parents, public, and the maintenance department so that every effort would be made to be considerate on those days and times, and to offer rewards for showing up and taking the test.

Mr. Cassidy requested a copy of the PowerPoint presentation by email. He was disappointed to see that all of our schools, with the exception of Bancroft were down in the similar school ranking. Mr. Cassidy asked if there has been an analysis of the other hundred schools. Ms. Wong said that unless the state changes how they collect the data, thing are not going to change. She said that they advise the principals to look at local schools i.e. Newark High School and see what they are doing. Mr. Cassidy would like the District to take a public position i.e. in the San Leandro Times, so that the community is aware of the steps being taken.

Mr. Cassidy asked about the time frame for corrective action and wanted to know the impact of NCLB to our District, and requested a copy of the No Child Left Behind resolution that was passed by the Board.

Ms. Perry said that CSBA, as part of the National School Board's Association, is making a concerted effort nationwide to have the new Secretary of Education address this issue. As information is received she will forward to the Board.

Mr. Cassidy also had concerns about Special Ed. class size and hoped to have some solutions in place for the next school year.

Mr. Heystek wanted to know if a Title I school could be a PI school as well as involved in II/USP. Ms. Wong said that they could, for example, Washington School is currently in SAIT (not meeting targets in the State API) after being in II/USP, and if Washington does not meet its Federal AYP targets it could also be in Program Improvement.

Mr. Richards suggested that in an effort to speed up the process, the Aeries system needed to be modified to identify problems and print out a report at that site.

Mrs. Hague asked if the request for information was offered in a variety of languages and if parent education information could be recaptured at a later date. Ms. Leventer said that the District provided versions in Spanish; English; and Cantonese - only sites with 15% home language; and that parent education information may be included in the revised emergency cards, but she would check.

Board members appreciated the very comprehensive and clear presentation.

# PUBLIC TESTIMONY ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS

San Leandro High School students Matthew Schweickert-Stary, Racheal Whyte, and Jesse Ibarra addressed the Board regarding teachers' salaries, and presented a petition in support of the teachers' choice to advocate the "work to rule" policy by invoking their own form of "work-to-rule, adding that "the District is in great peril if we keep continuing down this same path and our teachers are not treated with the respect that they deserve."

President Cutter encouraged the students to share their written support with the teachers; however there were some inaccuracies in their message and suggested having members of the Board come speak to the students sometime to answer any of their questions. She thanked the students for coming forward on behalf of their teachers.

# REPORTS

1) Correspondence – Clerk Davis reported receiving email from following:

Shirley Ramos, Stacy Kopp, Andy Lau and Pauline Lee, Luis Rivera, Mike Rogala, Cecilia Hernandez, Alma Magana regarding teachers' salaries; and Cindy Hicks regarding Teaching Abstinence Living to Kids (TALK) workshop.

2) Superintendent's Report – Superintendent Chris Lim reported that:

- Staff and Trustee Perry attended Williams Lawsuit training which involves three of our schools - Wilson, Garfield and Washington needing to comply in two component areas: instructional materials and a facilities area. She added that the District is ahead in our reporting, particularly in the personnel area;
- She announced the May 23, Bond/Parcel Community and Board Work Session at San Leandro High School, 6:30 pm.
- The Education Coalition is sponsoring a May 25 rally in Sacrament from 4-6 pm and that the District is working with CTA to support this effort. The District is looking to see if there are enough instructional minutes to release staff to attend.
- She attended John Muir's 50<sup>th</sup> birthday party at their Open House and met someone from the first class of John Muir.
- She also made the "front page" of the ACSA EdCal where she joined other educators, four board members, CTA rep. Lorraine Lerner, and parents asking the governor to" "Keep your promise to our schools".
- 3) Board Committee Reports
  - Facilities/Technology Mrs. Cutter reported that they met on April 8 and discussed (1) Esteban Zapiain's Technology Needs Presentation: District-Wide/High School, which will help us if/when we go for a bond measure; and (2) Update of District-wide Facility Projects i.e. Bancroft field project, where we have an "outstanding" chance of receiving this grant.
  - Policy Ms. Perry reported that the committee met April 18 and the following policies/administrative regulations will be brought to the Board on May 3: AR 1240, Volunteer Assistance; BP/AR 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11, Sexual Harassment All Personnel; AR 5245.7, Sexual Harassment Students; BP 6020; E(1-3) 6020/E(1-3), 6171, Instruction Parent Involvement; BP 6171; E(1-3) 6020/E(1-3)6171, Instruction Title I Programs; BB 9130, Board Committees; and BB 9311, Board Policies. They will be meeting on May 2 to discuss the executive committee and agenda preparation before brining it to the Board for further discussion.
- 4) Board Representatives' Reports

- Eden Area Regional Occupational Program Mr. Richards reported that the committee continues to reevaluate all the courses.
- Mid-Alameda County Special Education Local Plan Area No Report

Board members requested to pull the following consent items: Mr. Cassidy - 1.4-C and 3.1-C; Ms. Perry – 1.1-C; and Mrs. Cutter – 3.2-C and 3.3-C.

# CONSENT ITEMS

General Services

- 1.2-C Approval of Board Minutes April 11, 2005
- 1.3-C Eden Regional Occupational Program (ROP)Joint Powers Agreement
- 1.5-C Adopt Resolution #05-21, Opposition to Proposed Elimination of Funding for Career and Technical Education

Human Resources

2.1-C <u>Acceptance of Personnel Report</u>

**Business**, Operations and Facilities

- 4.1-C <u>Adopt Resolution #05-22, Piggyback Bid for San Leandro High</u> <u>School Growth Modulars</u>
- 4.2-C <u>Architect Contract Agreement San Leandro High School Growth</u> <u>Project</u>

On a motion made by Mr. Heystek and seconded by Mr. Davis, the Board approved the remaining consent items by a 7-0 vote.

# General Services

1.1-C Approval of Board Minutes – April 5, 2005

Ms. Perry said that on page 7, the constitutional amendment should read SCAx1.

On a motion made by Mr. Davis and seconded by Ms. Perry, the Board approved 1.1-C, Approval of Board Minutes – April 5, 2005, as amended by a 7-0 vote.

#### 1.4-C <u>Student Resource Officer (SRO)</u>

Board members noted clerical corrections in the letter to the City.

Mr. Cassidy stressed the importance of this position for the safety of our students and employees and hoped the City would place the priority of our students at the highest level when making their decision.

On a motion made by Mr. Davis and seconded by Mrs. Hague, Board approved 1.4-C, Student Resource Officer (SRO) letter to the City as amended by a 7-0 vote.

#### **Educational Services**

## 3.1-C <u>Acceptance of Donations</u>

Mr. Cassidy asked if there was a policy with respect to those people who make substantial donations i.e. letter, plaque from the District Office and felt that it was important to recognize these people.

Superintendent Lim said that she would research this and get back to the Board.

On a motion made by Mr. Cassidy and seconded by Mr. Richards, the Board approved 3.1-C, Acceptance of Donations as presented by a 7-0 vote.

- 3.2-C <u>Approval of Proposed Stipulated Expulsion Order for Student E24-</u>04/05.
- 3.3-C <u>Approval of Administrative Panel's Recommendation for Expulsion</u> for Student E25-04/05.

Mrs. Cutter noted that 3.2-C and 3.3-C were suspended expulsions and the wording needed to indicate that.

On a motion made by Mr. Davis and seconded by Mr. Richards the Board approved 3.2-C, proposed stipulated suspended expulsion order for student E24-04/05 and 3.3-C, suspended expulsion for E25-04/05 by a 7-0 vote.

# **ACTION ITEMS**

#### Human Resources

#### 2.2-A Library Media Assistant Position at San Leandro High School

#### **PUBLIC COMMENTS**

Roxanne Ansolabehere, SLHS Librarian addressed the Board in support of restoring the Library Media Assist to a twelve month position.

On a motion made by Mr. Davis and seconded by Ms. Perry, the Board approved to restore .09 FTE for the Library Media Assistant position at San Leandro High School by a 7-0 vote.

## 2.1-A <u>Adopt Resolution #05-23, Reduce Classified Services Due to Lack of</u> <u>Funds</u>

Mrs. Cutter asked for clarification and rationale regarding this position. Principal Amy Furtado explained that the position being reduced is the Associate Principal's secretary and the rationale was that the secretary should match the AP's 209 day work year. Mr. Martinez confirmed that he had met with CSEA reps and that they were aware of this reduction.

On a motion made by Mr. Heystek and seconded by Mr. Davis, the Board adopted Resolution #05-23 to reduce classified services due to lack of funds by a 7-0 vote.

The Board took a break at 9:50 pm. and reconvened at 9:53 pm.

#### **CONFERENCE ITEMS**

#### **General Services**

#### 1.1-CF Board Committee Reports and Information

The Board discussed and considered the request for Board committee reports and information to be included under Fiscal Impact on the cover sheet of the Board packet.

Mr. Davis explained he would like a "Board Committee Report" section included on the cover sheet for the committee to report out what recommendations or actions the committee took, and when they met i.e. Board polices. If there is no committee report on a particular item, then mark "Not Applicable" under that heading, thus eliminating the amount of time spent on committee reports by only reporting on those items that are not on the agenda.

Ms. Perry suggested and Mr. Davis agreed that an example would be *"Reviewed by the Finance Committee on April 21. The committee recommends approval of this item."* 

Mr. Davis said that the staff person who supports that committee would be responsible for that item and write that part of the cover sheet.

Mrs. Hague suggested that at the end of the meetings, the committee could take time to decide on what information needed to be included in the report.

Mr. Richards asked the Policy Committee to revisit BB 9322 stating that reports from committees should be included with the agenda packet, whereby a verbal report would not be necessary.

On a motion made by Mrs. Hague and seconded by Mr. Davis, the Board approved that a statement prepared by committees be included on the cover letter of the Board packet on issues that come before the Board by a 7-0 vote.

#### Business, Operations and Facilities

#### 4.1-CF <u>Potential Timeline and Tasks for Bond/Parcel Tax</u>

The Board discussed and considered a potential Bond and/or Parcel Tax based on timelines and key tasks as presented by District staff.

At the request of the Board on April 5, 2005, Mr. Glaster presented timelines for a General Obligation Bond and Parcel Tax election prepared by Kelling, Northcross & Nobriga, and Jones Hall attorney at law and a synopsis of successful and not successful parcel tax elections.

Mr. Cassidy would like to see a timeline separating out the bond and parcel tax. He said that he submitted an article to the Daily Review advocating for a parcel tax. He sees facilities and teachers as two primary needs of the District and supports proceeding with both items on the ballot.

Ms. Perry agreed with a special election for a parcel tax and would like to know the cost of a special election, and what programs would be covered. She also supported a bond measure in June 2006. Mr. Heystek appreciated Mr. Cassidy's idea regarding looking at both options. He would like a discussion at the April 25 special meeting regarding the merits of doing one or other or both. He would be willing to support a parcel tax if we could come up with plan on what we are going to fund, and asked if staff could draft a plan on how we would solicit the conditions of the schools, i.e. survey, needs assessment.

Mrs. Hague emphasized the need to have a lot of education and a vision of what the District is trying to build in order to be successful i.e. class size reduction.

The Board discussed the bargaining units' role in both the April  $25^{\text{th}}$  and May  $23^{\text{rd}}$  meetings.

Mrs. Cutter said it was suggested that all bargaining units be involved at either the April 25 meeting or the May 23, 2005 Board and Community bond and parcel tax work session. The meeting on the April 25 would set the stage for the meeting on May 23.

The Board shared ideas regarding the format of the May 23<sup>rd</sup> meeting; i.e. modeling it to the community meeting that the city hosted focusing on various ideas for the Bancroft playing field; or two days of community input that was done during the superintendent's selection process.

As a side note, Mr. Glaster said that SLTA suggested that if the District decided to go with a parcel tax, they would support that effort and the District should consider The Center for Community Opinion for outside support. (This was the group that was used for the June 2004 survey). He asked if it was the desire of the Board to do this in-house or to solicit professional help on a short-term basis.

The Board agreed that staff would bring to the April 25 meeting a draft of a timeline, suggestions for the community meeting and whether to use outside professional support or in-house

It was the consensus of the Board to have President Cutter write a letter, pending the attorneys recommendation, inviting the bargaining units to be part of the discussions on April 25, 2005, and May 23, 2005, regarding the needs of our district and getting a realist idea of what we can expect with a successful parcel tax and/or bond measure election.

On a motion made by Mrs. Hague and seconded by Mr. Heystek, the Board agreed to extend the meeting to 11:00 p.m. by a 6-1 vote. Mr. Davis voting no.

# 4.2-CF <u>Demographic Consultant/Agreement</u>

At the request of the Board on April 5<sup>th</sup>, staff brought back a scaled down demographer consultant agreement with a defined scope of services for further Board discussion.

Mr. Heystek was very pleased with the thoroughness of research obtained for demographers and felt that with the experience of Mr. Glaster and the references he trusted staff to bring back the best proposals.

Mr. Glaster indicated that one of the principals from the firm, School House Services, was from San Leandro and has a lot of insight of what would work and would tailor the contract to the needs of the District.

It was the consensus of the Board for staff to proceed with entering into an agreement with a demographer.

# ADDITIONAL SUGGESTIONS AND COMMENTS FROM BOARD MEMBERS

- Mr. Heystek thanked Superintendent Lim for sending two representatives, Al Acuna and Joyce Forsse, to the San Leandro Collaborative's Health and Wellness Fair planning committee meeting encouraging the Board to continue their support of the San Leandro Collaborative. "Healthy Families for Life" will be the theme of the Health and Wellness Fair on September 24 hosted by the Bayfair Center. He invited the District to be an exhibitor and encouraged Board members to support the fair in anyway they could.
- Mr. Cassidy reported that Superintendent Lim, Trustees Davis and Perry and him attended a meeting at the Sheetmetal Training Center and had the opportunity to view the center and learn valuable information that will help guide us as we move forward towards restoring the metal shop program next year. He added that based on the numbers of students in a class per the experts, he felt that the current weight room would be an appropriate facility. Mr. Cassidy addressed the issue of working together as Board highlighting one of the principals of collaborative work is to "focus on the issue and not the person." He thanked everyone for some very good public meetings and hopefully that would change community perceptions of the Board.
- Ms. Perry reported that she attended the housing work session hosted by the City Council and received vital information that the District needs to look at regarding our planning for the parcel tax, the demographers and potential

sites that the City is looking at for housing. She viewed the "Teacher as Artist" exhibit at the CASA Museum on April 8. The following District teachers displayed their work: Audry Brown, Diane Una Dove, Claudia Stafinski, Thomas Laughlin; Cindy Hodges, Anita Schirver; Jan Rosenberg; Phil Hardgrave; Tony Farley; Rose Marie Bivens; and Katie Kurisch. The exhibit will continue through May 1. She attended "Bat Boy" at San Leandro High School; middle school open houses: Bancroft had an auction of student art work; and Muir celebrated their 50<sup>th</sup> Birthday as part of the evening; the Wellness Policy had their first meeting and will begin meeting in September hoping to have the policy to the Board committees and full Board sometime in November/December. She attend the Williams' training at the request of County Superintendent Sheila Jordon so that Districts would be aware of the media coming to our campuses in May and September. She received a binder and every Board member is welcome to borrow it.

- Mrs. Hague said that she attended the DARE officer program at Madison and wanted the Board to be aware of the importance of the program and while it is easier to defend the SRO position, she didn't want the Board to lose site of the necessity of supporting our DARE officers and would hate to see the "rug" pulled out of under them in this process.
- Mr. Richards appreciated receiving the Board Request Matrix on a regular basis, however was interested to know why some of the January and February requests had not been addressed. He said it would be helpful if a date could be established for these items to be accomplished.
- President Cutter said she received a letter regarding Senate Constitutional Amendment (SCA) 8 which she will forward to the Advocacy Committee to address; and communication from CSEA President Claire McKean requesting that May 15-May 21 be declared Classified School Employees' Week. Superintendent Lim added that resolutions Honoring the Day of the Teacher, Management Employees' Week along with Classified Employees' Week would be on the May 3 agenda for adoption. Mrs. Cutter also reported that she received correspondence from the School Boards' Association and the California Consortium of Education Foundations announcing a one-day meeting, May 12, *"Education Foundation Fundamentals"*, in Sacramento for districts who are considering starting a local education foundation (LEF); have a beginning local education foundation; and have an education foundation that needs to be revitalized. She requested that the Superintendent send copies to the high school and Board members for anyone who might be interested in attending.

## ANNOUNCEMENT

## **Future Board of Education Meetings**

- Special Meeting April 25, 2005, 6:00 p.m., DO, regarding Bond/Parcel Tax
- Regular Meeting May 3, 2005
- Regular Meeting May 17, 2005
- Special Community Meeting regarding Bond/Parcel Tax, May 23, 205, 6:30 p.m., San Leandro High School Cafeteria
- Regular Meeting June 7, 2005
- Regular Meeting June 21, 2005

#### ADJOURNMENT

On a motion made by Mr. Davis and seconded by Mr. Richards, the Board adjourned the meeting at 10:50 p.m. by a 7-0 vote.

Respectfully submitted,

Raymond E. Davis III, Clerk